
UNITED NATIONS 140.6't:h meeting 

ECONOMIC AND SOCIAL CC>l'NCEl Frlday, !4.$ ;F~br«azy J2.66, 
at 10.50 a.m. 

F ortieth Sessica 
OFFICIAL RECORDS NEWYORK 

------------------------------------------------------------------------
CONTENTS 

Agenda items 4 and 3: 
(~) Report of the International Bank for Reoon

struotlotJ and Development and of the 
Internationa.l Development Assooiation; 

(]2) Report of the International Finanoe Cor
poration 

Report of the International Monetary Ft111d 
foontinued) 

Page 

(~eneral debate. • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • 25 

Pr,qsident: Mr. Tewfik BOUATTOURA (Aigeria). 

Present: 

Representativas of the following States: Algeria, 
Cambroon, Canada, Chile, Czechoslovalda, Dahomey, 
Ecuador, France, Gabon, Greece, India, Iran, Iraq, 
Luxembourg, Morocco, Pakistan, PanamS:, Peru, 
Philippines, Romania, Sierra Leone, Sweden, Union 
of Soviet Socialist Republics, United Kingdom of 
Great Britain and Northern Ireland, United Republic 
of Tanzania, United States of America, Venezuela. 

Observers for the following Member States: A:rgen
tina, Austria, Byelorussian Soviet Socialist Republic, 
Cuba, Denmark, Hungary, Ireland, Israel, Italy, Japan, 
Maurita·aia, Mexico, Nigeria, Poland, Spain, Sudan, 
Turkey, United Arab Republic, Yugoslavia. 

Obser·vers for the following non-member States: 
Federal Republic of Germany, Switzerland. 

Representatives of the following specialized agen
cies: International Labour Organisation; · Food a.nd 
Agricultura Organization of the UnitedNatio~; United 
Nations Educational, Scientific and Cultural Organiza-

' ' tion; World Health Organization; International Bank 
for Reconstruction and Developm<::,\lt; International 
Monetary Fund. 

The representativa of the International Atomic 
Energy Agency. 

AGENDA ITEMS 4 ANO 3 

(g) Report of the lnternatiooal Bank for Reconstruc
tion and Development and of the lnternational 
Developrr:!nt Association (E/4129 and Add.1 and 
2); 

(!~) Report of the lnternational Finance Corporation 
(E/ 413(} and Add.l and 2) 

Report of the lntern11tional Monetary Fund (continue~} 
(E/41"41 and Add.1} · 

GENERAL DEBATE 

l. The PRESIDENT welcomed Mr. George D. Woods, 
President of the International Bank for Reconstruc-

tion and Develot-~lent (IBRD) and lts subsidiarles, 
the International Development Association (IDA) and 
the International Finance Corporation (IFC), and 
invited. him to introduce the reporte of those bodies 
to the Council. 

2. Mr. WOODS (President of the International Bank 
for Reconstruction and Development) said that meet
ings such as those of the Council, at whioh all 
shades of political thought were repr6sented, pro
vided an opportunity for defining the broad outlines 
of what was called "development" as precisely as 
was needed to ensure enduring international co
operation. 

3. Within the United Nations family, t}le principal 
task of ffiRD was to provide finance for specific 
pl'ojects-the word "projects", which covered a grow
ing variety of investments, was precise enough to 
define co-operation between investors and the recip
iente of investments-and to ensure ·in all cases 
that those projects were likely to make a lasting 
cor1t:ribution to increasing productivity and thereby 
to an improvement in the well-being of the people 
of the country concerned. 

4. Since 1 January 1966, the end of the period 
covered by the annual report of the ffiRD and IDAY 
and of IFC Y and supplementary documente submitted 
to the Cotmcil, IDA had announced $65 million in 
credits for Pakistan, the United Republic ofTanzania, 
Basutoland and Ethiopia for agricultura! credit, indus
trial imports, grain storage andbandling.androadand 

. school building. A further twelve Bank loans and IDA 
cre.dits, for roads, electric power, water supply and 
port facilities in Latin America, water supply anda 
development finance company .. in Africa and power 
production in Asia, were about to be submitted to 
the Directora. The IFC had announced tw:o trans
actions, one in Ethiopia and one in Venezuela, involv
ing the underwriting of public shares in new or 
expanding manufacturing enterprises. In helping local 
investors to acquire a share in the ownership of new 

· local industries, IFC WCé.S performing one of the 
most important functions of the Bank group, for there 
was no substituta for local savings for development 
purpos~~·· 

25 

5. Moreover, since l. Jauuary IBRD had dispatched 
nearly fifty missions to different countries, some of 
them · concerned with feasibility studies financed, 

.Y International Bank f'or Reconstructl.on and Development: Inter
national Development Association, Annual Report, 1964-1965 (Washing
ton, o.c.)~ and supplemantary infarmation for the period from 1 July 
to 31 December 196r.;. Transmitted to members of the Economic and 
Social Council by nv~s of the Secrf:ltary-C'.eneral (E/4129 And E/4129/ 
Adcl.1-E/4130/ Add,l). 
·Y International Finance Corporation, Arutual Report, 1964-19655 

(Washington, D.C.), and supplementary informat!on f<lr the peried 
from 1 Jllly to 31 December 1905. TransmitteGl to members of the 
Economic and Social Council bY, notes of the Secretary-General (E/4130 
and E/4129/ Add.1-r.:/4130/ Add.1). 

E/SR.1406 



1111;812 $$ &21111111 1 1 ; : as: a: 1 1 as ;; a 4tk 212 uau;; . JJ : E 1 t 1 1 1 EAUIA4EOU$4SUII!i.ll :S Stt!k 

26 Economic and Social Council - Fortieth Session 

in many cases, by the United Nations Development 
Programme, and had opened its second African 
regional office at Nairobi; that office would help 
African Governments to prepare investment pro ... 
jects and would oversee the Bank' s Agricultura! 
Development Service in Africa, which was respon
sible for providing member Governments with tech
nicians to help in the carrying out of agricultura! 
projects. 

6. A group similar to the Consultative Group for 
Tunisia ha~ met to study th~ p~oblems and prospects 
of Nigeria, and Consultative Groups for Malaysia, 
Thailand and Colombia wer~ to hold meatings in 
the forthcoming months. 

7. The Bll.nk' s Economic Development Institute had 
recently celebrated its tenth anniversary. More than 
500 of:ficials, from nearly 100 coun'i:ries and ter
ritoriess, har1 &.ttended its courses and were now 
performing ~.ey 'llanagement roles in the economic 

· development o:f their countries. From March 1966, 
the Institute's courses would be given in three 
languages instead of two. ' 

· 8. The purpose of all the various activities of the 
Bank group was to increase the volume and variety 
of investinent. The group had in recent years been 
payi:'lg special attention .. to two new spheres-educa
tion and agriculture-and it httd made arrangements 
with UNESCO and FAO which were already resulting .· 
in fruitful có-operation. 

.. 
· 9. It was· only recently that the idea of investing 
money, according to banking standards, in the accu
mulation of intellectual capital had begun to be 
exploited. The need was vast and, since the Bank' s 
principal task was the financing of economic develop
ment, it had to identify projects which were both · 
directly concerned with education and suitable for 
bank financing. Since March 1964 it had dispatched 
seventy-two · missions, thirty-four of them in co
oper~tion with UNESCO, to prepare ar'd appraise 
specific projects in member countries · and it had 

. already granted sixteen loa11s and credits amount:l.ng 
to a total of $110, million. He cited asan example ' 
IDA credits of $13 million granted to Pakistan to 
expand the agricultura! science faculty of a universit-r 
in West Pakistan and set up such a faculty in a 
university in East Pakistan and to equip six poly- 1 

technic i:ichools in West Pakistan and eight in East 
Pakistan. IDA had also granted a credit of · $7.2 
million to Ethiopia to help in :Jarrying out a pro
gramme designad to increase schoól attendance three
fold, to provide evening courses for craftsmen and · 
busínessmen, to improve the equipment of tw 1 tech
nical training institutes .and to expand teacher train
ing at thP Halle Selassie 1 University; the last 
project was in co-operation with the United States 
Agency for International Development. Th~ Bsnk 
and its subsidiarles made certain that all educational 
projects were related to current and foreseeable 
~mployment opportunities in the country concerned. 
They ;were also greatly interested in technical 

. advances, particularly in information media, the 
application of which to education m1.ght in future 
years glve rise to large-scale i:tt,restment projects 
if the technical innovatlons were associated With 
high standards of teachln"-

10. The financing of agricul~ural development pl"e
sented somewhat d1fferent problema since, .alth'?ugh 
the technical knowledge existed, development was 
hamper.,9d by the resistence of the rural poptüation 
to innovation, by the conversatism of landowners 
and by the prejudice of a great many Governments 
in favour of industry. In most devEJloping countries, 
however, agricultura was the major source of employ
ment for the people and its development was essential 
in order to inc:r.ease not only food production but 
also the production of raw materials for processing 
and export. It was certainly not an easy matter to 
persuade millions of small farmers to change their 
ws.ys a:nd the development of rural areas should there
fore be given high priority. Governments were becom
ing aware of that need, as was demonstrated by the 
increase in the number of agricultura! projects 
recently financed by IBRD and its subsidiarles, namely, 
twenty-five projects under negotiation and forty
three in preparation at the end of 1966, as against 
seven and nineteen, respectively, at the end of 19~3. 
The Bank was particularly anxious to expand its 
activities in the area of fertilizar production and 
distribution. The benefits of fertilizers, which had 
for so long been disregarqed in the developing 
countries, were beginning to be widely accepted and 
advantage should be taken of the crises created by 
food shortages to bring them into general use. Ample 
supplies of raw material existed in the developing 
countries of the world, the technology was known, 
capital was available-all that was needed was ima-

. ' gination and, in particular, a spirit of co-operation. 
Since it was mainly in the developing countries them
selves that both the raw materials and the demand 
were to be founde increased fertilizar production 
and use would bring about a significant expansion 
of trade among those countries. The capital and 
technology for the setting up of large enterprises 
were available ln the industrializad countries, and 
the Bank and its subsidia ries were at present explor
ing a large number of fertilizar production projects. 
They hoped to be able to act as intermediarias 
between organizations in the public and in the private 
sector, when collaboration was necessary and desir
able, ·and between Governments in various develop
ing regions, when intarnational co-operation was 
required. Programmes to increase fertilizar produc
tion and use should be combinad with expanded.ser
vioes to farmers, inclu.ding agricultura! credit. GOv
ernments, for their part, would have to review 
their policies in regard to agricultura! prices, importa 
and distribution, and rid themselves of the paralysing 
idea that agricultura &"ld industry should exist in a 
staté of divorce. Fertilizar production provided an 
excellent example of · the enduring marriage which 
would have to be arranged between agricult':lre and 

· industry if hopes for economic progresa were to 
be realizad. 
11. The groWing gap between the different groups 
of countries was amply illustrated by the alarming 

' statistics, but when it e ame to raising capital for 
developmeb.t those statistics were· no substituta ·for 
deftnite projects, liberally defined~ soundly conceived; 1 

and ds.ringly . planned. According to the Bank' s cal
culatious, the developing countries as a group could 
effectiv~ly use, during each of the following ftve 
years, some $3~000 million to $4,000 million more 



1406th meeting - 25 February 1966 27 

in externa! aid tha~ they were at present receiving. 
'l,hat capital would only be forthcomtng, however, 
if there were solid and sound achievements on the 
part of the developing countries. While recognizing 
that such achievements were evident in a growing 
number of countries, he stressed that the task of 
enlisting capital and tecbnical skills would be greatly 
facilitated if the projects submitted by Gove-rnments 
were accompanied by firmer commitments in respect 
both of finance and of the management of projects and 
the drawing up ofpolicies. Unfortunately, it sometimes 
happened that projects which had been carefully pre
parad after thorough research and evaluation could not 
be carried out be cause of the unwillingness of the Gov
ernments concerned to make the necessary commit
ments in time. While he appreciated the difficulties 
which many Governrnents faced on account of inh~rnal 
differences and the inadequacy of their resouro~s, 
he was also aware of what could be achieved when 
Governments gave prioriCy to the solution of the 
problema involved in their economic development. 

12. The task of enlisting the necessary capital and 
technical skills for the Bank's activities would also · 
be lesa difficult if the developed countries recog
nized the same priority in formulating their externa! 
a id programmes, and he would like to appeal once 
aga1n to those countries not· to neglect their own 
interest in helping other countries to escape frcm 
poverty. Not only was the flow of development assist
ance inadequate in volume but its effectiveness was 
ham~'t'ed by various factors, such as the common 
practice of tying the aid provided to the purchase 
of supplies in the donor country, the inadequate 
proportion of long-term, low-interest financing and 
the paradoxical insistence of the developed coun
tries that the developing countries should draw up 
long-term investment plana~ when · the developed 
countries were either unable or unwilling to give 
even provisional figures of the amount of their 
externa! aid programmes far in advance. · · 

13. The greatest obstacle to the enlistment of the 
capital and skills ueeded for development was, how
ever, the predominant place given by the Press and 
public opinion to political disputes and aggressive 
nationalist activities which impéd~d economic develop
ment and even made any progresa impossible. He. 
concluded by expressing the hope that the day · would' 
come when men and women from all countries who 
wel"e dedicated to the cause of deve} opment would 
enjoy the same prestige as thepoliticiat.s andmilitary. 
men and would be able to make t~temselves equally 
well heard. 

14. Mr. VAKIL (Iran) congratulated the President 
of ·IBRD on his enlightening statement and on the 
outstanding work achieved by the Bn<:J.k and its sub
sidiary bodies. The recent expansion of the Bank' s . 
activities in' financing agr!cultural projects would 
certainly help towards a solution of the food problem 
and wou!d increase the production of raw materinls, 
but it was essentlal that "a marriage between agri
cultura and industry" should be arranged. Agricultu!'e 
c<?uld only develop With the help of 'the products · 
and tools supplied by industry and the Bank should . 
therefor.e play a major role in the development of J 

industries in developing economies. The Bank could 1 . ' 

• 
supply aid to 'ndustrial projeots which, by absorbing 
a considerable amount of labour, could have afavour ... 
able effect on price stability and the balance of inter
national payments, qualities which were not neces
sarily to be found in infra-stru.ctural projects. 

15. The servicing of their externa! debts imposed 
on the developing countries a heavy burdei! which 
slowed down the pace of their growth. He hoped that 
IBRD would put forward considerad suggestions for 
relieving that burden. 

16. He welcomed the Bank's decision to establish 
offices in West and East Africa ~d thought that the 
establishment of similar officea in other developing 
regions might be useful in assisting in the prepara
tion of projects suitable for financing. He also 
welcomed the forthcoming opening of the Asian 
Development Bank, to which he hoped IBRD would 
extend its support and co-operation. 

17. As the President of IBRD had said, the effec
tiveness of externa! assistance was often hampered 
by the practica of tying such aid to the purchase 
of supplies in the donor country. His Government 
thought that the Bank should consider entering into 
negotiations With the main donor countries in o;r.oder 
to encourage them to cha:rr.nel their aid through 
multilateral organizations. The resulta of the Bank' s 
activities were i::1deed evident, but if, on the occasion 
of its twentieth anniversary, it were to undertake 
an eval uation of the actual economic yield of its 
activities, it would help to emphasize the advantages 
of multilateral aid. 

18. The expansion of the activities of IDA was en
couraging but, siune it appeared that all its resources 
would be committed by the summer, new sources 
would have to be found to enable that highly t~ffective 
organizatton to continua its work. . 
19. With regar4 to IFC, it was· to be hopeCi that 
it would take an active interest in the industrial 
expansion of the developing countries and that, when 
it had increased its resources as a result of the . 
amendments made to its Articles of Agreement, it 
would give priority to countries which bad not yet 
benefited from its assistance-among_ them Iran~ 

20. ln conclusion, he associated himself with the 
appeal made by the President of the Bank to capital 
eXporting· countries and agreed that, as Mr. Woods 
had written in a recent articl~. With so much already 
done and so much still left to be done, it would be 
unthinkable for the richer nations, by their inaction, 
to let the developing world lose hold of its. hard
won gains and lose sight of its ultimate goals. 

21. Mr. SEYDOUX (France) said that the report 
presentad by the President of !BRD was a cause 
for both satisfaction and concern. 

22. Although the '7olume of the Bank' s loans had 
increased considerably during the previous year, 
bringing the total amount of loans granted . since 
its establishment . to $9,500 . milUon by the end of 
1965, as comparad With $8,400 million in 1964, and 
although the other organizations !n the group had 
also been active, it should not be forgotten that the: 
total amount of assistanoe to the developing coun
tries had ceased to incraase d'uring recent years, 

.. ------------------~--·~-···" 



111 llillil 4 1 1 -· [IJWQ$1.,11! !i1li ¡¡ 1 . 1 UZUS:JS$$61 t 2 

28 Economic and Social Council - Fortieth Session 

especially if the net amount Óf assistance which those 
countries received was considerad. The Bank had not 
escaped that relative stagnation, for although new. 
loans had amounted to more than $1,000 million 
in 1965, actual disbursements had been only a little 
over $600 million. During the same period, capital 
reimbursements by debtor countl:'ies had amounted 
to more than $300 million and interest payments 
to more than $200 million, which meant that the net 
receipts of new money by the borrowers as a 
whole amounted in fact to only $100 million, or less 
than one tenth of the gross total of loans. Admittedly, 
sorne of the payments received by the Bank related 
to old loans granted to developed countries, and the 
new loans approved for developing countries amounted 
to considerably more than the reimbursements which 
those countries had to make. Nevertheless, those 
figures were an indication that the developing coun
tries were incurring debts which were sometimes 
excessive. 

23. With regard to the goals pursued by the Bank 
and its subsidiary bodies, he approved in particular 
the trend towards the financing of agricultura! pro
jects. It was only with the support of a modern 
system of agricultura that the developing countries 
wol.'lld be able to satisfy the food needs of their 
growing populations an.d at the same time become 
industrializad. He also approved the exten. lion of 
the Bank's educational and cultural activities but 
stressed, as Mr. Woods had himself done, that the 
Bank should confine ltself to financing projects which 
would have an immediate or rapid effect on economic 
development. 

24. The problem of assistance to the developing 
countries in ~neral caused him a twofold concern. 
First, the under-dev~~loped countries were incurring 
increasingly large debts. His delegation did r..ct think 
that there should be a general and systematic solution 
to the problem but that, in the majority of cases, 
there were special situations which could be remedied 
by individual measures to be worked out in liaison, 
if necessary, with the international agencies con
cerned. Secondly, the developed countries should try 
not to increas2 unduly the financia! bürden which 
already weighed Ol¿ the unde:r:-developed countries. 
They should· therefore agree to grant low-interest 
loans or even-as in the case of assistance given 
by hi.s COU1itry-offer gifts rather than loans in 
many instancer3. 

25. In conclusion, he pointed out that the Bank should . 
not lose sight of the fact that its essential rcl\J was 
to assist dev·elopment and that although, with the 
constant creation of new bodies, it no longer liad a 
monopoly in that sphere it was still the only organlza
tion which had large enough financia! resources 
and \Vide enongh 't.tJchnical skills at its disposal to 
tackle the problem of under· development on a large 
scale. 

26. Mr. ñASAN (Pakistan) said that he would first 
like . to expresa bis country' s gratitud e to mRD, 
which had really come to be .~ part of the national 
life of Pakis+:an a.nd had been very closely associated 
wlth the formw.a.tion and financing of its successive 
develop:tnent p!'ans. Pakistan had benefited signifi .. 
cantly from ~lta technical assistance provided by 

the Bank, in particular the detailed survey of river 
ports and waterways development in East Pakistan, , 
its financ:l.ng of the Havard Group which had been 
assisting the planning commission and the provincial 
planning department of Pakistan, and in the field 
of education. 

27. The activities of the Bank and its associates 
already covered a very wide range. However, he 
would like the Bank to include civil aviation, which 
played a majar role in the communicaf:ions system 
of developing countries and was of special signifi
canee to Pakistan. 

28. While he was aware of the efforts of the Bank 
to secure loans on more favourable terr.ns for the 
developing .countries, he thought · that the terms on 
which development loans were made available could 
be quite substantially improved. In that connexion, 
he drew the Council's attention to the resolution 
which it had adopted unanimously at its thirty-ninth 
~ession (1088 A (XXXIX)), on theproposa.lofPakistan, 
requesting the Governnients of developed countries 
to make the terms· on which they made finances 
available more favourable to the developingcountries. 
!t was important for it to be implementad as soon 
as possible, since the developing countries were 
continuing to suffer grcatly from the international 
trend towards deterioration in the terms of trade, 
which placed a great strain on their balance-of
payments position and on their ability to service 
their international obligations. Combined wlth those 
difficulties was the tendency in most of the developed 
countries to impose restrictions on the importation 
of manufacturad and semi-manufacturad goods from 
the under-developed cou.;trias. Therefore, the flow 
of trade between the developing and the developed 
countries should be liberalizad. In that connexion,. 
he stressed the importance of two further :q¡easures 
which were at present being considerad by IBRD: 
compensatory financing and the support . of local 
currencies, which he considerad might remedy the 
shortage of foreign exchange exp~rienced by the 
developing countries. 

29. Pakistan had devoted a considerable amount 
of attention to the agricultural sect.:>r and the queotion 
of increasing fertilizar production, ta whith the 
President of the Bank had referred. The object.ives 
of its third five~"· "'':tr plan in the agricultura¡ sector 
were to increa. ;he ree,l income of farmers, to 
'pro mote the de· .-elopment of agrioulture on ~t·.u.~d 
bases and to endeavot.ll' to meet food requiremelAts 
without sacrificing the production of cash c:t:OJS. 
To that end, agricultura had been allocated 15.4 per 
cent of the plan outle.y; an increase of 128 per ct~nt 
over tl,e second five-year plan. Pakistan hoped to 
achieve an agricultura! groWth rate of 5 per cent 
as against the 3.5 per cent achieved under the 
second :plan. It expected to apply ~ntensive cultivation 
methods, to use fertilizers as mnch as possible, 
to improve seed and plant protection measures, to 
strengthen education, agricultura! research, market
ing and co-operativas, and to provide price incentives, 
in the form of either subsidies or reductions in 
export duties. At the sametime, inorderto strengthen 
the rural eoonomy • Pakistan had al so instituted s. 
unique works programme whosc main objeotives were 

1 



l(\ " . " ' ". . . 
IUIIIII ...... ••-•u•_:•Li•UL•aa•ta •..• I!.Jl ....... •ai'L·IJ·II ••.• uu •.• IU.JI•i• ... •:: •. • 1 J.U.II 

1406th meeting- 25 February 1966 29 

to offer empioyment opportunities :for surplus man
power and to provide an infra-structure for rural 
development by establishing local institutions to 
eusure the participation of the rural population in 
the planning and execution of ~oca! development 
programmes. The works programme had been allo
cated $500 million under the third five-year plan. 

30. Pakistan had undertaken a vast programme 
for the production and utilization of fertilizers, but 
it had to be admitted that they were very little used 
and that, even if the rural development plan succeeded, 
the leve! reached in 1970 would sti11 be very low. 

31. He welcomed the establishment of the Asian · 
Development Bank and was confid~nt that it would 
augment the total foreign exchange :..•esources avail
able to Asian countries. He hoped that it would 
secure additional finances and would not merely 
se:rve as a channel fordistributingexistingresources. . . 
32. With regard to the role which IBRD could play 
as an 11honest broker", his delegation considerad 
that the Bank was a particularly effective instrument 
for bringing peace to regions in which conflicts 
now prevailed. There was the notable example of the 
Indus Waters Treaty, 1960, betweenindia and Pakistan 
which had been brought s.bout by the Bank' s efforts 
and intervention. · 

33. Mr. SIDI BABA (MO;t:OCCO) said that his remarks 
would refer both to the statement by the Managing 
Director of the International Monetary Fund (1404th 
meeting) and to the statement by the President of 
IBRD. 

34. He noted With satisfaction that ·the Council was 
attaching more importance to the Afrioan countries, 
as was demonstrated by the fe.ct that an Afrlcan 
had been elected President 'i.'or the first time. He 
considerad, however, that the Council and the in ter-

.. national monetary and financia! agencies should show 
even greater understanding towards those countries 
and the. developing countries in general. 

35. He recalled that at the annual meeting of the 
Board of Governors held in Tokyo in September 1964, 
the Fund had adoptad decisions designad tv lighten 
the :tnancial burdens of developing countries, in 
particular to enhance their drawing opportunitiCJs 
under a compensatory :financing procedure. In addi
tion, the United Nations Conference on Trade and 
Development (UNCTAD) had, sorne months before 
the Tokyc' meeting, recommended the establishment 
of a group of eXPerts to consider the tnternational 
moneta~r issues relating to problems of tt'ade and 
developr.aent, devottng particular attent:on tothetrade 
of tho developing countries.·.3../ However, the arrange
ments recommended still seemed inadequate. 

36. In his Government's view, the relations between 
the financia! artd monetary agencies and the dev~lop
ing countries should be based on a number of new 
principies. His Government, which was anxio,ls to 
meet its obligations, had adopted ~n economic and 
financia! policy which was based on two concepts: 
the deience of its cu~rency and purposeful austerity. 

Y See Proceetlings of the Untted Nadona Conference on Trade and 
Develc .. nent, vol. 1, Final Act ai1d Report (United Nations publlcation, 
&\lea No.: 64.!1.8.11), annex A.IV.19. 

In order to check inflationary trends, severe cuts 
in expenditure had been made in sectors which had 
no direct bearing on economic and social develop
ment. In that way, the deficit in the balance of pay
ments had been reduced, and Morocco had been able 
to ftnd the resources needed to finance its three
year plan. However, it still needed financia! and 
technical assistance from the developed countries 
and from international .agencies. For such assistance 
to be fruitful it would have to be provided on terms 
which were in keeping With development needs and 
repayment capabilities. 
37. Morooco had endorsad the Bank's suggestion 
that a consultative group of experts Should be set 
up to advise on multilateral assistance policy. He 
welcomed the importance that the Bank attached 
to agricultura! and educational projects and added, 
witb regard to the specific case of fertilizers, that 
Morocco was a large eXPortar of fertilizers and 
was ready to assist countries which needed such 
products. 
38. The Fund and the Bank also had another important 
function: they had to actas technical advisers. giving 
priority to·the least favoured regions. 

39. Morocco was aware of the fact that the economic 
and. social progresa of the Afr.ican continent was 
indivisible, and it was helping to strengthen and 
develop regional economic and financia! organiza
tions such as the African Development Bank. The 
members of that Bank, almost all of whom were al<3o 
members of IMF, had made their Wishes olear: 
they wanted t.he resources of IDA to be substantially 
increased; they were asking IBRD to help Africa 
to build an infra-structure of roads, railways and 
telecommunications; they were also asking the Bank 
to allow repayments to te made in local currency 
and they hoped that supp!ementary liquidity would be 
created which would enable their countries to ovel'
come certain payments difficulties. They were also 
asking the Bank and the Fund to take energetic action 
to stabilize commodity prices, in particular by means 
of a general market organization policy. 

40. One feature of the present world economic scene 
was the worseninp- situation of the countries export
ing primary commodities. That detorioration was 
caused to a large extent by price fluctuations which 
Governments could not control. At its last sessiol'l, 
the Trade and Development Board seemed to have 
shown that the great econor ... lic interests ~ontrolling 
those fluctuations were not at presed able to rectify 
them. Therefore internattonal agencies like the Fund 
and the Bank should make a great effort in that direo
tion so that a more healthy concept of intornational 
trade could develop in the gt;neral interest. 

41. Sir Keith UNWIN (United Kingdom) said that . 
he could find no room for criticism of the olear and 
encouraging statement made by the President of 
IBRD. The Bank had played an essential :-ole in 
encouraging the flow of capit~ on a multilateral 
basis to developing countries. IBRD, IDA and IFC 
had considerably increased the amount made avail
aJ:J1e in loans to those countries and the range of 
technical services offered to them~ Moreover, the 
Bank .. toW maintained fruitful relations wltll IMF 
and with such institutions as UNESCO and FAO. 



,.:~'42 ! J2 XJ&41Mttit1MIM4ZMJ. J 1 ... 1 ihi!kk&lkidiitiJI&::S:&S!UZ!ii !JC!J&!M il 1 1. 

30 Eoonomic and Social Counoil - Fortieth Session 

42. He hoped that the merging of the Special FUnd 
and the Expanded Programme ofTeohnioal Assistance 
into a United- Nations Development Programme would . 
faoilitate closer co-operation with the :aank so that 
there would be no divorce between pre-investment 
and investment activities. 

43. The Bank, and particularly IFC, should also 
co-operate closely with the new United Nations 
Organization for Industrial Development. That organi
zation -- would ha ve substantial resources of man
power and money at its disposal and should be able 
to improve the efficiency of United Nations assistaí.4ve 
in the industrial sector, which, in the past, had 
been disappolnting in some respecta. 

44. He was glad to see that new consultative groups 
for co-ordinating e,~d to individual countries had 
be en set up and that steps had been taken to strengthen 
the existing groups and consortia. Those groups 
and consortia provided a method for consultation 
between developed countries, between developed and 
developing countries and with the multilateral insti
tutions, and helped. to crea.te an atmosphere of con
fidence between those who provided funds and those 
who received them. · 

45. Furthermore, he welcomed the Bank' s efforts 
to face what its President had called the "debt explo
sion" and to ease interest rates. In that connexion, 
the earlier Bank study on "Economic Growth and 
Externa! De'bt'' had been particularly useful. His 
Government decided to grant interest-free loans to 
some developing countries least able to service new 
loans-loans made on that basis so far totalled 
$140 million. 

46. Perhaps the most encouraging feature of the 
past year wes the progresa in establishment of 
regional banks. His Government h!ld undertaken some 
time ago to contribute to the African Development 
Bank, and he was gratified at the swift progrese 
made by the Astan Development Bank. 

47. Asto the future, two positive steps were already 
visible. First. the resources of IDA must be replen
ished; the United Kingdom would contribute its share 
and hoped that the other countries would do like
Wise. Secondly, th!a Bank had reportad on supple
mentary financia! measures..Y to mitlgate the effects 
of fluctuations in export earnings on the development 
programmes of the de'Veloping countries. The Trade 
and J)evelopment Board had already hada preliminary 
discussion of that, and there would be a more 
aom¡•lete presentation of views at the forthcoming 
sprintg m~etings of the UNCTAD Committee onlnvisi-
bles tlnd Financing related to Trade. · 

48. Although encom•ag!ng progrese had been made, 
the ov-er-all pibture still gave much cause for con
cern. The measures taken to deal with the debt 

· explosion appeared lnsufftcient; moreover, there was 
reason to fear ·that · the developing countries would 
be lnéapable of Withstandlílg another explosion, the 

U lnterna~onal Bank for Roconatrucdon and .Di!velopment~ .§!!J>Plenten
tant Fit.!!ncial Measurea: A Stt1dy Reguested. by the Unltbd Nations 
Conference on Tracte tnd Dovelopntent, 1964 (Wash!n¡ton, o.o., Decem
ber 1S65). Transmitted to the UD1ted Natiou Confereuce on Tracte and 
Dé"ieJ.c.pment by a note of tbe Secretary·General Cf the Conference 
(ID/'fJ/J..S). . . 

population explosion. The ·total flow of capital to 
those countries remained more or less static. The 
industrializad countries, which were currently expand
ing, must therefore work out a more coherent policy 
for the transfer of resources to developing countl'ies. 
The latter should, for their part, adopt adequate 
policies and programmes and mobilize their financia! 
and other resources. The Bank had made an estimate 
of the amount of additional capital that would be· 
aváilable in the near future; a way must be found 
to make the provision of that capital less vulnerable 
to balance-of-payments difficulties, to political prob
"lems and to the reluctance of taxpayers and voters. 

49, In conclusion, the Council should now, at the 
start of the second half of the United Nations Develop
ment Decade, work out a more coherent strategy 
for development. 

50. Mr. JIMENEZ (Philippines), re~rring to that 
part of the statement by the Managing Director of 
the International Monetary Fund which dealt with 
international liquidity, said that the reform of the 
international monetary system should be carried 
out by all countries, not by a limited group, and 
that all members of the Fund should be able to 
take an active part in the various international 
liquidity discussions in progrese. The Fund should 
also co-operate in ~·rtat conne,xion with· UNCTAD, in 
which the devc ~ g countries placed their hopes. 

51. Moreover, ,;,,;rlle it was proper for the Fund 
to call upon debtor countries to improve thelr pay
ments situation or stabilize their economies, creditor 
countries should also modify some of their financia!, 
monetary and commercial practices...:.suchas restric
tions on foreign lending and discriminatory monetary 
systems-which were making the situation more 
difficult for the developing countries. 

52. He believed that the Fund should also seek to 
devise a new international reserve system. The 
present system produced a paradoxical result: ihe 
poor countries were lending to the rich; they supplied 
funds to reserve centres and later had to bor:row 
those funds at high rates of interest. In order to 
remedy that situation, it would be desirablt;) for 
any new reserve assets created in the future to be 

· invested in regional development banks, so that the 
funds would be distributed more equltably, with 
the developing coW'ltries having some say in the 

' distribution. 

53. He. ~ecalled that the Managing Director had 
mentioned the alarming increase in the external 
indebtedness of the developing countries, from $9,000 
million in 1955 to $33,000 milllon in 1964. What 
caused even more concern, however, was that the 
estúnated cost of servicing that debt in 1964 had been 
between $3,500 million and $4,000 mlllion. Thus, 
about 40 per cent of the total public and private 
loans made to the developing countrles had been 
returned to the creditor oountries in the form of 
service payments in 1964. · 

54. It w&s interesting to note in that connexion 
that the Fund, the Bank and the Organization for 
Economic Co-operatlon and Development were going 
to tnake a more thorough study of short-term and 

. long-term indebtedness. Wbat was needed, however, 



1406th meeting- 25 February 1966 31 

was an accelerated llberalization of the terma of 
development finanoing, whether bilateral or multi
lateral, in favour of the developing countrles. In 
bilateral governmental lending, a movement in that 
dtrection was now under way. The Bank also had 
taken steps along those linea. Thus, in October 1964, 
tt had made a loan to the College of Agricultura 
of the University of the Philippines; the loan had 
been made for thirty years With a ten-year grace 
period, but the lnterest rate remained at the standard 
value of 5. 5 per cent. His delegation hoped that 
multilateral sources such as mRD and the regional 
development banks would take steps, through the 
establishmeut of an "intereat equalization fund" or 
otherwtse, to grant loans at lower interest ratea 
and for longer terma. 

\ 

Lttho in U.N. 

55. He welcomed the lncrease in the volume of IDA 
lending but deplorad the fact that, accordlng to the 
organization'a expectatlons, abnost all ita resources 
would be commltted by the aummer of 1966, Those 
resources must be inoreased, and IDA muat make 
tts funda more quickly available to the recipiente. 
The countries which had alreacly acbieved aome 
degree of development should also be eligible for 
IDA loans, since it was preciaely at that stage that 
the need for capital was most urgent and debt
serVictng charges became heaviest. It should also 
be emphasized 'tbat IDA resources should be uaed 
for development financing and not for balance-of ... 
payments support, which was a matter for IMF. 

The meeting rose at 1.10 p.m. 




